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History /
Biographical:

Albert Edward McKenzie was born in Wilcox Lake, York County, Ontario in 1870 to Francis
Bethel McKenzie and Maria (Carley) McKenzie. In 1882 he moved to Brandon, Manitoba with
his family, where his father established a Flour, Seed and Grain business. At the age of twenty-
six, following his father’s death, A. E. took over the family business and transformed itinto a
seed institute. As the President of The Brandon Seed House, and, later, A. E. McKenzie Seed
Co. Ltd., Mr. McKenzie played a central role in the daily operations of his company up until
three weeks prior to his death on September 25, 1964.

In 1901, Mr. McKenzie married Laura Bell of Carmen, Manitoba, with whom he had two
daughters, Marjorie and Kathleen. Kathleen married Walter C. Roberts and became a
member of the Board of Directors of her father's company. Marjorie graduated from Brandon
College, and received additional degrees from the Columbia College of Expression, and from
Northwestern University. From 1927-1930 she taught at Brandon College, then resigned to do
post-graduate work. She returned to Brandon College in 1935 as Instructor of Public Speaking
and Dean of Women in Clark Hall. Marjorie resigned as Dean of Women after one year, and
eventually relocated to British Columbia. Both Kathleen and Marjorie survived their father.
Laura had passed away in 1943. At the time of his death. A.E. McKenzie was also survived by
had one grandson: David McKenzie Roberts.

In addition to building his company into one of Canada's foremost seed institutes, McKenzie
was also involved with many community projects. He was affiliated with the YMCA, YWCA,
Salvation Army, and Community Chest. He was a charter member of the Kiwanis Club, and a
long-term officer of the Brandon Chamber of Commerce. However, McKenzie's major interest
was Brandon College, for which he served as a governor and as chairman of the board of
governors for the College.

A central figure in the fight to save Brandon College, McKenzie was instrumental in the
formation of Brandon College Inc., and, in 1945, he established the A. E. McKenzie
Foundation, for which the Government of Manitoba was the sole trustee. His gift to the
Foundation was securities valued at $1 million, which ensured the survival and re-
establishment of Brandon College and later Brandon University.

In 1941, McKenzie received the degree of Doctor of Laws honoris causa from the University of
Manitoba. In 1962, he was honored with a certificate of merit for exemplary citizenship in
commerce and in every aspect of community life from the City of Brandon.

Custodial History:

See fonds level description of custodial history of A. E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd.
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Scope and Content:

This sub-series consists of correspondence created and received by A.E. McKenzie during
his years as President/General Manager dealing with the operation of his company. This
includes construction estimates, and correspondence with the company's lawyer, Wm.
Johnson. A letter from Gairdner & Company Limited regarding McKenzie's attempt to
reacquire ownership of A. E. McKenzie Ltd. from the Province of Manitoba.

The sub-series also contains material relating to legal matters: one file concerns a successful
legal action against the A.E. McKenzie Seed Company by the Canadian Alfalfa Association.
The action arose following the sale of seed to a seed company located in Berlin, Germany in
1938. A second file deals with the prosecution of the company in Bismarck, North Dakota for
mail fraud. The company lost both cases. Patents secured by the company are also included
within the sub-series.

Also contained within the legal sub-series are records dealing with A.E. McKenzie's passing.
These include correspondence with the National Trust Company and Miss Jean MacKay, and
a summary of A.E. McKenzie's will. There are also some documents dealing with McKenzie's
stocks and shares in the Company.

Documentation relating to the 1918 By-Law Campaign, in which McKenzie tried to secure tax
relief for his company in relation to the construction of its new plant, is also included within the
sub-series.

The sub-series is divided into six sub sub series, including: (1) Secretary; (2) Legal Matters;
(3) Correspondence; (4) Patents; (5) By-Law Campaign 1918; and (6) Miscellaneous.

Notes: *"Tapes" in the Related Material field refers to hard copy written
summaries originally provided on tape for typing. Organization by tape
number was found to be more efficient than listing these items by title.

Language Note: Within McS 2 1.3, the correspondence sub sub series, there are some
documents written in Gregg shorthand. No translation is available.

Storage Location: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
McS 2 Office of the President/General Manager

Related Material: Regarding sub sub series McS 2 2.2 (Legal Matters): The court pocket
for the alfalfa case involving McKenzie Seeds at the Court of Queen's
Bench in Regina, Saskatchewan may be available through the
Saskatchewan Archives Board. John Diefenbaker acted for the Alfalfa
Associationin this case.

Historical Topics under A.E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd. fonds, Series 2
(Office of the President/GM), sub-series 2 (J. Lasby Lowes) contains
some information regarding McKenzie's patents (file 16, Tapes 29 and
30), and a legal case in Bismarck, North Dakota in 1957 regarding the
violation of mail fraud statutes involving the sale of seed wheat (file 11,
Tape 26)*. Information regarding the sale of Alfalfa seed to a German
seed company is available in file 2. There are also a number of files
containing information about A. E. McKenzie.

S. J. McKee Archives p.3


http://archives.brandonu.ca/#

A.E. McKenzie Foundation
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4340

Part Of: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: MG 5 1.2

GMD: textual records

Date Range: 1940, 1945-1989

Physical Description: 6 cm

History /

Biographical:

In 1945 the A. E. McKenzie Trust of 1939, which led to the formation of Brandon College
Incorporated, was cancelled. As a result A.E., who was still trying to solve the College's
financial problems, set about attaining a special act of legislature that would enable him to
transfer 90% of his company's stockholdings to the control of the Province of Manitoba to
benefit the College.

See fonds level administrative history description.
Custodial History:

See fonds level description of custodial history of A.E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd.
Scope and Content:

This sub-series includes correspondence regarding the McKenzie Foundation between
Brandon College Inc., McKenzie Seeds, William Johnson and the Government of Manitoba. It
also contains records dealing with Educational Advisory Board. A substantial amount of this
correspondence is in regards to the payment of Brandon College Inc. from the McKenzie
Foundation. In addition, there is also correspondence generated by the Comptroller-General

and Wm. Johnson regarding Foundation Account, as well as some other financial information.

Various documents are also present within the sub-series, including Bill 87, amendments, an
authorization provision for variation in agreement and an agreement between McKenzie,
Brandon College Inc. and the National Trust. A collection of prepared statements or briefs,
many written by A.E. McKenzie regarding the purpose and future of the Foundation are also
included.

Storage Location: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd. fonds
MG 5 A.E. McKenzie fonds

Related Material: Information regarding the A.E. McKenzie Foundation can be found in
Series 2 (Office of the President/GM), sub-series 2 (J. Lasby Lowes),
Historical Topics file 1 (Tape 9).

Series 5 (Photographs), oversized drawer #4 contains newspaper
clippings dealing with the establishment of the McKenzie Foundation.
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A.E. McKenzie fonds - miscellaneous
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4343

Part Of: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: MG5 1.5

GMD: textual records

Date Range: 1887-1960

Physical Description: 3.5 cm

History /

Biographical:

This sub-series is artificially created and contains records that did not fit into any of the
preceding series or sub-series.

Custodial History:
See fonds level description of custodial history of A.E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd.
Scope and Content:

The records in this sub-series concern A.E. McKenzie's personal life. It contains a number of
documents created by his father, F. B. McKenzie, including land deeds, financial records, and
a grant of probate. The sub-series also includes documents concerning the Ontario Mutual Life
Assurance Co., the dissolution of partnership between A.E. McKenzie and George. E.
McKenzie, the release of F.B. McKenzie's estate to his son and a copy of A.E. McKenzie's
mother's last will and testament.

Also included within the sub-series is a file or correspondence between McKenzie and R.B.
Dessert, a former employee of McKenzie Seeds who established his own seed company in
California after leaving Brandon. The correspondence is almost entirely personal in nature.

Thank you letters regarding Brandon College and scholarships, as well as minutes from
meetings of the Education Advisory Board can also be found within the sub-series.

Storage Location: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd. fonds
MG 5 A.E. McKenzie fonds
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A.E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd. - scrapbooks
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4336

Part Of: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: McS 6 6.3

GMD: textual records

Date Range: ¢.1903 - ¢.1940

Physical Description:  27.5cm
Physical Condition: The scrapbooks in this sub-series are fragile, particularly the product
book. They must be handled with great care.

Custodial History:
See fonds level description of custodial history of A. E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd.

Scope and Content:
This sub-series consists of three scrapbooks. Two of the three contain copies of
advertisements for a number of businesses, including McKenzie Seeds, Steele Briggs,
Patmore's, Rennie's, and McFayden Seeds. Clippings dealing with a variety of other
companies in the seed industry are also included. The third scrapbook contains pictures of

various flowers, vegetable, herbs and other seed products in alphabetical order. An inventory
is available for the third scrapbook.

Notes: Date(s) of creation, including distribution, publication, etc.:

a) [No title] ad book - 1906-1911
b) "Scrap Book" ad book - 1917-1926
c) [No title] product book - ¢.1903 - ¢.1940

Storage Location: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
McS 6 Miscellaneous
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AE. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd. - miscellaneous publications
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Part Of: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: McS 6 6.2

GMD: textual records

Date Range: 1963, 1978, 1984-1985

Physical Description: 6 titles; 6 cm

History /

Biographical:

This sub-series consists of publications that did not fit into any of the preceding series or sub-
series.

Custodial History:
See fonds level description of custodial history of A. E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd.
Scope and Content:

This sub-series includes one copy each of Manitoba Business Top 100 (June 1985), Trade
and Commerce Supplement, Brandon (c. 1963) and Manitoba Business (November 1985).

It also includes a Christmas Song book, the book "By Gossip and Myth" by Prof. George
MacDowell and a document entitled "Background Information re A.E. McKenzie Seed Co.
Ltd."

The following newspaper clippings have been located in the map case drawer #4 located in
the archives reading room:

. $175,000 Gift Set for College from City Man

. McKenzie Will Leaves House to Arts Centre

. The Old Alma Mater is Down on Her Knees

. How to Help the Alma Mater

. Good Things are "growing" on at McKenzie Seeds (ad)

. Fire fails to halt work at McKenzie Seeds

. McKenzie Seeds: new facilities are first in North America

. A full-page advertisment for McKenzie Seeds from "The Brandon Sun" (September 24,
1971)

0 N O Ok~ WN -

Storage Location: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
McS 6 Miscellaneous

George Thorman collection
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4725

Part Of: RG 1 Brandon College fonds

Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: MG 22.15

Accession Number: 11-1999

GMD: textual records

Date Range: 1801-1940, 1994;predominant 1880-1940
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Physical Description: 11 m (823 items); 1 diploma; 1 certificate

History /
Biographical:

George E. Thorman was born in Vancouver, British Columbia on September 17, 1913. His
public school education began in Rivers, Manitoba and was completed, along with his high
school and part of his university education in Brandon, Manitoba. After completing his
Bachelor of Arts General at Brandon College, Thorman attended the College of Education in
Toronto for one year before beginning his teaching career at Essex Hisgh School, Essex,
Ontario in 1935. After four years in Essex, Thorman transferred to the St. Thomas Collegiate
Institute (STCI) in St. Thomas, Ontario.

In 1941, Thorman joined the Canadian Army at Brandon as a gunner inthe 59th Field Battery
and after five years, having served in England, ltaly and Western Europe, heretired with the
rank of Captain. Following the Second World War, in 1945, Thorman taught in a high school for
Fifth Division in Gronigen, Netherlands before moving on to teach first year university English
at Kahki College in England in 1946. That same year he returned to Canada and rejoined the
staff at STCI. Two years after his return George Thorman married the former Margarett Gliddon
of St. THomas and in 1953 returned to Europe where he taught in Scotland for one year on a
teacher's exchange.

During the 1960's, Thorman's career reached its peak. In 1964, he became the Vice-Principal
of STCland in 1967, he attained the same position at Parkside Collegiate Institute before
becomeing its Principal in 1969. Three years later in 1972, Thorman retired as Principal of
PCland from his teaching career. Throughout his career Thorman's primary interests were in
English and History, however he also taught Mathematics, Georgraph and Science. In addition
to his classess following WWII, Thorman was an active instructor of the Cadet Corps, as well
as a coach for various volleyball, basketball and track and field teams during his years at STCI.

Aside from being an educator, George Thorman had many other interests. He and his wife
Margaret were active in the formation of the Elgin Theatre Guild in 1948 and thogether and
separately they performed and directed several productions in the early years of that
organization. Thorman was also largely responsible for the development of a local history
course in the Elgin Secondary Schools in the early 1960's. In 1966, with his fellow history
teacher Ralph Parker, he published a booklet to serve as an outline for teachers on the history
of Elgin County.

That same year, 1966, Thorman, as the prime instigator in the re-formation of the Elgin
Historical Society, became its first president and in 1971, he was elected Honorary President
of the Society for life. This was followed by a furhter two-year term as elected president. The
re-organization marked the beginning of THorman's continous active involvement with the
EHS, including several lectures he presented to its members and many years as a Trustee. In
1985, he received the Ontario Volunteer Service Award for over 15 years of continuous
service to the Society before retiring from the EHS in 1995.

In addition to the EHS, Thorman served on the St. Thomas Public Library Board from 1979
until 1991, and was a Chairman of the Board's Personnel Committee. He was also a member
of the Ontario Historical Society. From 1975 to 1978, Thorman served as an elected member
of the Elgin County Board of Education and in 1979, he received from the City of St. Thomas
the St. Thomas Civic Award for outstanding citizens. George Thorman was also a life member
(1936) of Central Lodge No. 402, A.F. and A.M. (Masonry) of Essex, Ontario and had been an
active member of the St. Thomas Duplicate Bridge Club since 1985.

As an authority on historical research relating to The Hudson's Bay Company, Thorman gave
lectures and printed articles on the topic in "The Beaver" publication of The Hudson's Bay
Company. In regards to the HBC he also did excavation work at Fort Albany with Walter
Kenyon during several summers in the 1960's and 1970's.
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As well, George Thorman was a founding member and served on the executive committee of
the Elgin Military Museum since its inception in 1982 until the late 1990's. He contributed
greatly to the library and files of this museum, particularly in the field of the War of 1812 and the
Fenian Raid. The reference library of this small museum rates high in this country, largely
through the efforts of George Thorman. Thorman's book collection was one of the finest and
most extensive in Western Ontario. His personal library contained a wealth of information with
particular emphasis on material relating to Elgin County, the City of St. Thomas and The
Hudson's Bay company. His G.A. Henty collectio was nearly complete.

As an author Thorman contributed ten entries in The Dictionary of Canadian Biography on
Aboriginal and Metis peoples, co-authored "St. Thomas 100 Years a City," the centennial
history of the city of St. Thomas. In 1989, he edited "Frank Hunt, Essays on Elgin County" as
well as wrote and privately printed "A Brief History of Secondary Education in St. Thomas" as
his contribution to the STCI Reunion, at which he was one fo the honorees. In th early 1990's,
Thorman co-edited "Garret Oakes, Tales of a Pioneer," authored and privaley printed "Letters
and Petitions and other Papers Concerning the Mllitia Companies of Middlesex for 1839" and
"The Chisholm Family in Elgin County: Myth and Reality."

For serveral years, ca. 1975 to the mid 1990's, Thorman hosted a TV talk show on local
television interviewing persons connected to the history of St. Thomas and Elgin County. Many
older residents, who have since passed away, were interviewed and the resulting tapes are an
invaluable source of historical information.

Thorman and his wife lived in the historic section of St. Thomas and in the summer months
spent their time in Port Stanley. In addition, for several years in the early 1990's, Thorman
traveled annually to England - each time visiting a different area of the country. As well,
Thorman was also interested in the lives and activities of his former students and was
available and eager to assist any student or former student who asked for his guidance.
George E. Thorman passed away on January 11, 1997.

Custodial History:

The Order of the Sheaf and Thorman's Bachelor of Arts degree were transfered to the McKee
Archives by Rudi Denham, Chief Librarian, St. Thomas Public Library in August 2007. George
Thorman had placed his papers with the St. Thomas Public Library at some point prior to his
death; the Library had decided to deaccession the records and offered them to interested
institutions.

Scope and Content:

The collection consists of textbooks covering the subject areas of: Agriculture, Art, Business
education, Economics, Composition, Grammar, Rhetoric, Literature, Plays, Poetry, Prose,
Readers, Spelling, Phonics, Stories, Geography, Health, History, French, German, Greek,
ltalian, Latin, Algebra, Arithmetic, Geometry, Trigonometry, General mathematics, Music,
PHilosophy, Logic, Psychology, Religion, Research, Methods, Manuals, Astronomy, Botany
Chemistry, Physics, General science, Zoology, Cooking and Gardening. It also includes two
notebooks.

The works found in the collection were published primarily between 1880-1940, although they
range from 1801-1967, with an emphasis on history, all areas of mathematics, research and
topics related to english or language arts. There are a number of works published in the
nineteenth century dealing with most of the collection’s subject areas. The majority of the
collection focuses on public and high school textbooks, particularly in relation to the province of
Ontraio, with some attention to university education.

Also included is George Thorman's Order of the Sheaf, Clark Hall Guild certificate awarded to
him in recognition of his outstanding contribution toward the betterment of Brandon University
and Thorman's Bachelor of Arts degree from Brandon College (McMaster University).
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Notes:

Language Note:

Storage Location:

An inventory of the collection has been created. Also, the items have
been added to the Brandon University Library catalogue. Description and
inventory by Christy Henry (1999).

Thorman's Bachelor of Arts degree is in Latin.

MG 2 Brandon College Students
2.15 George Thorman

Albert Edward McKenzie
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4301

Part Of:
Description Level:
Series Number:
GMD:

Date Range:

Physical Description:

RG 1 Brandon College fonds
Sub-series

MG11.7

multiple media

19407-19607?

39 cm textual records
4 photographs
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History /
Biographical:

A.E. McKenzie was born in Wilcox Lake, York County, Ontario in 1870 to F.B. and Maria
(Carley) McKenzie. His family came to Manitoba in 1883. He was educated in Brandon,
Manitoba and graduated from the Collegiate Institute at age 21. In 1897 he founded the
Brandon Seed House. McKenzie was present at the cornerstone-laying ceremony of Brandon
College on Juy 13, 1900. From that moment on, he was very involved in the College, first as an
interested businessman, and later as a member of its Board of Directors. In 1902, McKenzie
married Laura Bell in Port Arthur. They had two daughters, Marjorie Bell and Kathleen. In 1906
the Brandon Seed House was incorporated and from then on was known as the "A.E.
McKenzie Co. Ltd.."

McKenzie became a member of the Brandon College Endowment Committee in 1918. The
following year he was on the Finance Committee. By 1925, McKenzie was a member of the
Board of Directors. In 1928, he was part of a syndicate that advised the Baptist Union that they
were developing an endowment plan to provide continuing financial support to the College and
talked the Union into providing $10 000 towards the accumulated deficit.

In 1931, McKenzie organized the Brandon Board of Trade to help save Brandon College when
the Baptists said they could no longer afford to keep the College. After the By-law failed, he
helped to organize the Brandon Citizen’'s Campaign to raise enough money so that the
College could open the following year.

When the Baptists withdrew supportin 1938, McKenzie was one of the central figures on the
Brandon Board of Trade that decided to save the College from closure. A representative
delegation from Southwestern Manitoba of over 60 men descended upon Premier Bracken’s
office to try and convince him to help the College. On June 12, 1938 McKenzie said he would
set up a $100 000 endowment to Brandon College. He subsequently raised this amount to
$300 000. On August 1, 1938 the Board of Trade launched a campaign to raise $15 000 to
match what the government was prepared to offer the College. McKenzie was asked to
provide Brandon College with $3000 personally. In September of 1938, McKenzie upped his
endowment once more to $500 000. The fund raising worked however, and the chater
establishing Brandon College Incorporated was assented to on April 17, 1939. On June 6,
1939 a by-law was again presented to the citizens of Brandon, and fortunately it passed.

In 1941, McKenzie received an honorary L.L.D. from the University of Manitoba. The A.E.
McKenzie Foundation was created in 1945 by the provincial government, who had assumed
90% of the A.E. McKenzie Co. Ltd. stock.

On September 25, 1964 McKenzie died at the age of 94. He never retired, but worked full time
until two weeks before his death. The funeral was held in the J.R.C. Evans Lecture Theatre.
The Arts and Library Building at Brandon College was completed in 1960, and is known as the
A.E. McKenzie building, in honour of the man who contributed so much time, effort and
financial help to the College during a crucial period in its history.

Custodial History:

Records were accessioned by the McKee Archives in 1998. Prior custodial history is
unknown.
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Scope and Content:

A.E. McKenizie’s records in the Brandon College fonds are very useful from an administrative
point of view. Because McKenzie was so involved in Brandon College from the very beginning
until his death in 1964, it is easy to understand how the College Administration arrived at
decisions. There is correspondence between McKenzie and various regarding College and
Board of Director business. There are Brandon College financial statements and letters
regarding the A.E. McKenzie Foundation. The records contain newspaper clippings,
pamphlets and lists of names of members of various Brandon organizations. As well,
McKenzie has letters regarding Building Expansion in the 1940’s and minutes of Board of
Director meetings. There are also several photographs. One photograph is the 1919
graduation picture of Zoe Hough. Another is tentatively identified as Frances Wolverton, also of
the Class of 1919. There are two more photographs of unidentified young women.

Name Access:

Subject Access:

Storage Location:

Related Material:

A.E. McKenzie

A.E. McKenzie Foundation
Brandon College

Zoe Hough

Frances Wolverton

Class of 1919
administration

board of directors

building expansion

MG 1 Brandon College Teaching and Administration
1.7 Albert Edward McKenzie

RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Seeds Co. Ltd. fonds

McKenzie centennial exhibit
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4334

Part Of:
Description Level:
Series Number:
GMD:

Date Range:

Physical Description:

RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
Sub-series

McS 6 6.1

textual records

1896-1996

34 cm
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History /

Biographical:
The program for the McKenzie Centennial Exhibit describes the materials in this sub-series as
a "visual collection of artifacts, printed materials and photographs, 1883-1996, celebrating the
centennial of A.E. McKenzie Co. Inc."

Created by current employees and based on research by Nancy McLennan, Sandra Head and
J. Lasby Lowes, the McKenzie Centennial Exhibit opened on April 25, 1996. It remained open
to the public on every Thursday between 2 to 4 p.m. to the end of June, 1996. Some of the
furnishings used in the display were contributed by the Daly House Museum. Located in the
McKenzie Building, the exhibit was assembled along the corridors of the building. It contained
a variety of materials, such as invoices, pay envelopes, blueprints, documents, furniture and
photographs from the one hundred years of McKenzie Seeds’ history.

Following the close of the exhibit, a smaller permanent installation was to be constructed at the
McKenzie Building.

Custodial History:

In the course of preparing the exhibit, Nancy McLennan took documents from the collection, but
failed to make a record of where the documents came from. As a result, these materials have
been left in the Centennial sub-series. It proved impossible to return them to their original place
in the fonds.

See fonds level description of custodial history of A. E. McKenzie Seed Co. Ltd.
Scope and Content:

This sub-series includes the individual descriptions of each exhibit printed on small white
envelopes, a guide to the exhibit, a photograph listing for photos used in the various displays
and the 1973 Directory of Canadian Chartered Accountants. The sub-series also includes
intact files for exhibits 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 39 and 40, Wholesale Sales Literature, Steele Briggs
Seed Co., Scrimping and Spending Big Time, Seed Wagon, Mostly Catalogue Inserts,
Letterhead, and For Your Reading Pleasure, respectively.

In addition, a number of booklets made by the creators of the exhibit are also contained within
the sub-series. These booklets are primarily a combination of original and reproduced sales
literature and catalogues, but also may or may not contain some correspondence, seed
packets, clippings and history for McKenzie Seeds, Pike Seeds/Robertson Seeds,
Acquisitions (Steele Briggs, Canada Seeds, Brett-Young Seeds), and McFayden/McConnell.

In addition to the above booklets, there are also materials dealing with the catalogues and
sales literature of McKenzie Seed Co. suppliers, such as Bodger Seeds, H. Keft from Holland,
the Denholm Seed Company, and the Vis Brothers. A number of documents, programs and
booklets relating to the seed industry in general, such as the "Black Leaf" Bulletin and a
number of documents relating to agriculture in Manitoba are also included.

Storage Location: RG 3 A.E. McKenzie Company fonds
McS 6 Miscellaneous

Related Material: Photographs from the Centennial Exhibition of McKenzie Seeds can be
found in Series 5 (Photographs), sub-series 5.9 (Centennial Photos).

S. J. McKee Archives p.13


http://archives.brandonu.ca/#

Tully McKenzie collection

http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4921

Part Of:

Description Level:
Accession Number:
GMD:

Date Range:
Physical Description:

Physical Condition:

History /
Biographical:

The book was a product of an organization called the Tremaine Activity Group that was formed

RG 5 Western Manitoba Manuscript Collection
Collection

14-2007

textual records

1973-1978

20cm

Books - excellent; Manuscript - good;
Correspondence/Mintues - very good

specifically for the purpose of compiling a history of the Tremaine-Hunterville district.

Custodial History:

The collection was deposited in the McKee Archives by Tully McKenzie in 1981.

Scope and Content:

Collection consists of the manuscript for, and two hardback printed copies of "lit's Time to
Remember 1875-1975: A Hundred Years of Progress, Tremaine-Hunterville area" written by
Tully McKenzie. The book covers a region north of Brandon that overlaps the western side of
the Rural Municipality of Odanah and the eastern side of the Rural Municipality of
Saskatchewan. Also includes miscellaneous correspondence, Tremaine Activity Group
minutes (1973-1978), and a record of sales for the book.

Notes:

Name Access:

Storage Location:

Storage Range:

Arrangement:

Expenses, receipts and bank statements of Tully McKenzie and the
Tremaine Activity Group were culled. Description by Christy Henry.

Frederick Philip Grove
Minnedosa
Rapid City

2007 accessions. Second copy of "It's Time to Remember" is on the
reference shelves in the Reading Room.

2007 accessions.

Manuscriptis in Box 1, the book and miscellaneous textual records are in Box 2.

George F. MacDowell collection

http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4049

Part Of:
Description Level:
Series Number:
Accession Number:
GMD:

Date Range:

Physical Description:

RG 6 Brandon University fonds
Sub-series

MG 31.12

9-2002

textual records

1941-1987, predominant 1960-1982
8.1m

S. J. McKee Archives
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Physical Condition: Good

History /
Biographical:

George F. MacDowell was bornin 1913, in Prince Edward Island. He studied at Dalhousie
University from 1930 to 1933, but did not complete a degree. During WWII, MacDowell served
in Canada and Europe as a member of the Royal Canadian Signals Corps. After the war, he
returned to Dalhousie University, graduating with a B.A. in 1947. Subsequently, he graduated
with a Masters Degree in Economics from Clark University in Worcester, Massachusetts.
George McDowell taught at both Mount Allison University and the University of Alberta before
coming to Brandon in 1957 to teach at Brandon College. He remained as a professor in the
Economic Department until his retirement in 1979.

MacDowell's work was published in the Canadian Journal of Economics and Political Science.
In 1971, McClelland & Stewart published his account of the Brandon Packers strike of 1960
tited "The Brandon Packer's Strike: A Tragedy of Errors." In Brandon, MacDowell maintained
a relationship with the local Association of Fire Fighters, aiding them with collective bargaining
procedures. He also served as Chairman for the MacKenzie Seeds Board, and was a
member of the Manitoba Development Corporation Board.

MacDowell never married and had no known children. He passed away on February 26th,
1986.

Custodial History:

This collection was in the possesion of George MacDowell until his death. It was then held by
the Brandon University Department of Economics until 1997, at which time it was transferred to
the McKee Archives at Brandon University.

Scope and Content:

The bulk of this fonds falls into five main categories:

1. Records dealing with the Brandon Packers Strike of 1960 and the subsequent legal actions
against the owners, including all 2215 pages of the Brandon Packers Strike Commission;

2. Records dealing with the Commission of Inquiry into The Pas Forestry and Industrial
Complex, including the complete transcript of the inquiry measuring approximately 5m. This
Commission dealt with the conduct of Churchill Forest Industries, a company owned by a
Swiss financial firm, which, in the 1960's, was given approximately 93 million dollars by the
Roblin Provincial Government to develop The Pas Forestry and Industrial Complex. Churchill
Forest Industries and its parent company subsequently came under suspicion of fraud and
accused of fradulently transfering The Pas Forestry funds into other foreign business interests;

3. Records dealing with business loans awarded by the Manitoba Development Corporation
during the 1970's and 1980's to businesses primarily within Manitoba;

4. Records dealing with McKenzie Seeds, and McKenzie Steele-Briggs Seeds during the
early 1980's when George MacDowell was a board member of McKenzie Seeds;

5. Records dealing with Professor MacDowell's career as a Professor at Brandon University,
including records relating to his courses and to administrative activities.

To a lesser extent, this collection includes records dealing with the University of Saskatchewan
College of Commerce, the publication the "Manitoba New Democrat," issues associated with
politics, labor and union in the prairie provinces from the 1960's to the 1980's, articles from
various economic periodicals including "Economica" and "Public Finance," a variety of
government reports from 1941 to 1981, and records dealing with George MacDowells'
relationship with the Brandon Firefighters Association.

S. J. McKee Archives



Notes:

Name Access:

Subject Access:

Access Restriction:

Repro Restriction:

Storage Location:

Related Material:

File level inventory available. Description written by Mike White (2002).
Errol Black

Brandon University

University of Saskatchewan College of Commerce
Manitoba New Democrat

Manitoba Development Corporation

Brandon Backers Strike Commission

Bank Act

A.E. McKenzie Steele Briggs Seeds

Brandon Firefighters Association.

economics

trade unions

economics curriculum

public service unions

prairie politics

Edward Schreyer government

labour

Manitoba business loans

government economic reports

Collection includes financial data on many Manitoba businesses. Consult
the archivist for access.

Researchers are responsible for observing Canadian copyright
restrictions.

MG 3 Brandon University Teaching and Administration

1.12 George F. MacDowell

Related material regarding George MacDowell's involvment with the A.E.
McKenzie Company can be found in RG 3 McS A.E. McKenzie Company
fonds.

S. J. McKee Archives
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Labyrinth of Peace centre symbol
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions7959

Part Of: RG 6 Brandon University fonds
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: MG 3 1.18

ltem Number: 32-2007.4

GMD: graphic

Date Range: 2002

Physical Description: 4" x 6" (colour)

History /

Biographical:

Photograph was taken by Christy Henry on August 10, 2002 following the grand opening of the
Labyrinth of Peace. The Labyrinth is situated in the Assiniboine River Corridor near the
Discovery Centre in Brandon, Manitoba.

Custodial History:
See series level of the Christy Henry fonds for Custodial History.
Scope and Content:

Photograph shows the centre symbol - a wheat sheaf carved into a piece of stone shaped like
the province of Manitoba - of the Labyrinth of Peace.

Storage Location: RG 5 photograph storage drawer
32-2007

Related Material: Additional information on the history of the Labyrinth of Peace project can
be found in RG 6 (Brandon University fonds) 7.1.6 (Department of
Religion) File 1.

S. J. McKee Archives
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Jeff Umphrey Memorial Centre

http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8280

Part Of: BUPC 2 Campus buildings
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: 2.1

GMD: graphic

Date Range: 1970

Physical Description: 9 photographs

History /

Biographical:

The Jeff Umphrey Memorial Centre was completed in 1970 and is located on the north side of
Victoria Avenue and 20th Street. Campus Books was located in the basement of the Umphrey
Centre from 1970 to 1978. Once Campus Books moved to the lower McMaster Concourse,
the University Archives occupied the basement from 1981 to 1997. A branch of the Bank of
Montreal was located on the west side of the building until c. 2006 when the Department of
Fine Arts moved into the Umphrey Centre and the Glen P. Sutherland Gallery was constructed
on the main floor.

Scope and Content:

Sub-series consists of photographs of the Jeff Umphrey Memorial Centre and the various
University organizations that have operated out of the Centre.

John R. Brodie Science Centre
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8279

Part Of: BUPC 2 Campus buildings
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: 29

GMD: graphic

Date Range: 1950s-1982; predominant 1970s
Physical Description: 20 photographs

History /

Biographical:

The John R. Brodie Science Centre was completed in 1971, with the official opening on May
7,1972. ltis located in the southeast corner of the campus and houses the Faculty of Science.
The Brodie Building was named for John R. Brodie, a Brandon man who donated $250,000 to
Brandon College in 1963 with the stipulation that the money be used for a Science Centre.

Scope and Content:
Sub-series consists of photographs of the John R. Brodie Science Centre.

Notes: Additional biographical information on John R. Brodie is available in his
bio file in the Reading Room.

Keystone Centre development and construction fonds

S. J. McKee Archives
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http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4854

Part Of: RG 5 Western Manitoba Manuscript Collection
Description Level: Collection

Accession Number:  22-1998

GMD: textual records

Date Range: 1957-1974; predominant 1970-1974

Physical Description: 36 cm

History /

Biographical:

The idea of the Keystone Centre was first mentioned in 1958, at a meeting of the board of
directors of the Manitoba Winter Fair. The Manitoba Winter Fair wanted a new facility because
the old Wheat City Arena had a leaking roof and a deteriorating west wall. The old facility also
had limited space and the Winter Fair felt it needed more space for expansion. The Provincial
Exhibition of Manitoba also had problems with their facilities, such as old barns and poor
display areas. The idea of the Keystone Centre was put on hold until 1969, when the boards of
the Provincial Exhibition and the Manitoba Winter Fair joined together as the Provincial
Exhibition Association of Manitoba and the Wheat City Arena was sold and demolished. The
original estimate for the cost of the Keystone Centre facilities was $4.5 million and funding
would be proportioned so that the federal and provincial governments would each put in one-
third of the money, with the rest coming from local donations. The financial campaign for the
Keystone Centre beganin 1970, and construction began in November 1970. The grand
opening of the Centre was in March 1973, and coincided with the Royal Manitoba Winter Fair
of that year.

Custodial History:

This fonds was accessioned by the McKee Archives in 1998. Prior custodial history is
unknown.

Scope and Content:

Fonds contains many folders full of correspondence, financial statements, meeting minutes
and other documents relating to the development and construction of the Keystone Centre from
1970-1974, including those from the Keystone Executive Committee, as well as the Building
Committee. Fonds also contains one folder that pertains to the Brandon Area Agricultural
Development Survey from 1959. This folder contains the names and locations of all farmers in
the Brandon area in 1959. The Brandon Area Agricultural Development Survey was created in
1959, in order to make farming in the Brandon area more profitable. The survey was aided by
Doane Agricultural Service from St. Louis, Missouri, who had success creating agricultural
development programs in the United States. Fonds also contains folders from the Provincial
Exhibition with correspondence, pamphlets, estimates, and studies from the 1960's. There is
also one folder belonging to the Manitoba Winter Fair, which contains correspondence and
financial statements relating to the Wheat City Arena. Fonds also contains information
pertaining to the proposals made in the 1960's, for the building of the Keystone Centre, as well
as one folder about the Keystone campaign from 1970-73. There is also one folder about the
opening of the Keystone Centre, which contains newspaper clippings and guest lists. Finally,
the fonds contains information about a court case involving Albert Bobyk and Robert Stewart.
Stewart was the project manager for the Building Committee and Bobyk worked on the
Keystone Center. The fonds includes a report about the trial of the two men who were charged
with fraud involving their work on the Keystone Centre.

Notes: CAIN No. 202608

S. J. McKee Archives

p.19


http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions4854
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/list?q=setName%3a%22RG+5+Western+Manitoba+Manuscript+Collection%22&p=1&ps=&sort=title_sort+asc
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/list?q=objectType%3a%22textual+records%22&p=1&ps=&sort=title_sort+asc

Subject Access: Ray Forbes
Fred McGuinness
Brandon Area Agricultural Development Survey
Doane Agricultural Service Inc
Agricultural & Homemaking School of Brandon
Royal Manitoba Winter Fair
Provincial Exhibition of Manitoba
South-Western District Agricultural Society
4-H
Manitoba Department of Agriculture
City of Brandon
Keystone Committee
Keystone Building Committee
agriculture
architecture
exhibitions
swine farming
sheep farming

cereal grain farming

rural life

winter fairs
Storage Location: 1998 accessions
Storage Range: 1998 accessions
Education Building
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8277
Part Of: BUPC 2 Campus buildings
Description Level: Sub-series
Series Number: 2.7
GMD: graphic
Date Range: 1967-1978
Physical Description: 10 photographs
History /
Biographical:

The Education Building was completed in 1966. It is located between Clark Hall and the Health
Studies Complex.

Scope and Content:

Sub-series consists of photographs of the Education Building.

S. J. McKee Archives
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Original Music Building and Queen Elizabeth IT Music
Building
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8278

Part Of: BUPC 2 Campus buildings
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: 238

GMD: graphic

Date Range: 1960s - ¢.1990

Physical Description: 26 photographs

History /

Biographical:

The Original Music Building was completed in 1963. The School of Music moved to the Queen
Elizabeth I Music Building in 1985. From ¢.1986 until 1997, the Original Music Building
housed Student Services. Since 1997, the building has been used by the School of Health
Studies; a new segment was added to the Original Music Building in 2003 to create the Health
Studies Complex.

Scope and Content:

Sub-series consists of photographs of the Original Music Building and the Queen Elizabeth Il
Music Building.

Notes: Queen Elizabeth Il Music Building has been abbreviated to QEIl Music
Building.

Arrangement:

All photographs of the Health Studies Complex, which includes the Original Music Building, are
part of BUPC sub-series 2.10.
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Citizens' Science Building and Knowles-Douglas buildings
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8274

Part Of: BUPC 2 Campus buildings
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: 23

GMD: graphic

Date Range: ¢.1980s - ¢.1990s
Physical Description: 5 photographs

History /

Biographical:

The Citizens' Science Building was built in 1922 and financed by Brandon citizens. It was
renamed the Knowles-Douglas Student Union Centre c. 1984 in honour of Brandon College
graduates Stanley Knowles and Tommy Douglas, both of the Class of 1930. The Knowles-
Douglas Addition was completed in 1987.

Scope and Content:

Sub-series consists of photographs of the Citizens' Science Building and the Knowles-
Douglas buildings, which include the Knowles-Douglas Student Union Centre and the
Knowles-Douglas Addition.

Brandon College Building and Clark Hall
http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8273

Part Of: BUPC 2 Campus buildings

Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: 22

GMD: graphic

Date Range: ¢.1909 - 1996; predominant 1960s - 1996
Physical Description: 116 photographs

History /

Biographical:

BRANDON COLLEGE BUILDING

The construction of the Brandon College Building, also known as the Original Building, was
primarily financed by Mr. and Mrs. William Davies, a Toronto based Baptist meat packer, and
his sister Mrs. Emily Davies, also of Toronto, who pledged $5,000 a year for five years to the
new Baptist College. Four city blocks between 18th and 20th streets were purchased for the
College campus and the tender of Messrs. T.M. Harrington of Winnipeg was accepted in the
spring of 1900; Mr. Hugh McCowan of Winnipeg appointed as architect. Mrs. Davies laid the
cornerstone for the Brandon College Building on July 13, 1900.

The Brandon College Building was conceived as a substantial five story brick structure with a
stone basement. The Tyndall Manitoba quarries, located thrity miles northeast of Winnipeg,
supplied the stone and presented the College with the stone steps at the main entrance. The
basement contained the dining room, kitchen, laundry, furnace room, a science laboratory, and
maids' rooms. The first floor housed the reception room, office, library, four classrooms and the
teachers' cloak rooms. The second floor had five classrooms, a reading room, five rooms for
resident students and a resident teacher. Teachers' rooms and seventeen rooms for students
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The residence was to house 70 men. The total cost of the building and furnishings was
$44,000. The Brandon College Building was ready for occupancy by October 1, 1901.

CLARK HALL

The cornerstone of Clark Hall was laid by Mrs. A.P. McDiarmid, wife of the Principal of
Brandon College, on May 24, 1906. The residence was officially opened on Thanksgiving Day,
October 18, of the same year. The construction of the building grew our of a demand for a
ladies' college. A canvass made in Eastern Canada had resulted in subscriptions totaling
$10,000. When Dr. McDiarmid reported the results of the canvass to the Chairman of the
Board, Dr. C.W. Clark of Winnipeg, Clark proposed that he and his wife be allowed to
provided the balance of the funds, some $30,000. While presenting the building at the opening
ceremony, Clark stated that the reason for his donation was his belief in the power of cultured
womanhood - he believed "that refined and Christian mothers were the strength of a nation and
that he wished to see in Brandon a chool of learning for women in which every Christian virtue
and grace might be illustrated."

Clark Hall was built immediately north of the Brandon College Building and was connected to it
by classrooms and the iron door with its door bell, which was rung by gentlemen before being
admitted. It is a five story brick building, with fittings of imported Georgia pine. In the basement
was the gymnasium, studios and maids' rooms. On the main floor was a spacious reception
room furnished by the Honorable A.C. Rutherford, the Premier of Alberta and the Lady
Principal's suite, furnished by Mrs. N. Wolverston, wife of the treaurer of the College Board.
Music studios and the offices of the resident matron were also on the main floor. The second
and third floors were dormitories. The fourth floor was meant to be art studios, but due to
registration demands, it was divided into students' rooms. The residence was designed to
house fifty students and seven teachers. Piano practice areas were also designated on the
west side of the building and on the groundlevel half way between the basement and the first
floor.

BRANDON COLLEGE BUILDING AND CLARK HALL RESTORATION PROJECT

By the early 1990s, it was clear that major reconstruction work on the Brandon College
Building and Clark Hall was necessary if the buildings were to remain in use. The alternative
was to demolish both buildings and construct a new central administrative structure for the
campus. Because of the historic character of the two original campus buildings, the decision
was taken to mount a complete restoration of the structures that involved a complete removal
of everything except for the surrounding brick fascade and the construction of new buildings
within the old external walls. This project was financed by the Provincial government of
Manitoba, who granted the University approximatley 10 million dollars. The Chief Architect for
the restoration was George Cibinal. Work began in 1996 and was completed by the fall of
1997. In addition to the restoration of the Brandon College Building and Clark Hall, a new
entrance was built on the west side of the buildings, as well as an addition to Clark Hall, which
included a skywalk connecting it to the A.E. McKenzie Building.

Scope and Content:

Sub-series consists of photographs of the Brandon College Building and Clark Hall.

Notes: History/Bio information was taken from Brandon College: A History,

1899-1967 by C.G. Stone and F. Joan Garnett (Brandon, Manitoba:
Brandon University, 1969), chapters 2 and 3. Tom Mitchell provided
history/bio information on the restoration project.

Images

S. J. McKee Archives

p.23



Physical Plant buildings

http://archives.brandonu.ca/en/permalink/descriptions8281

Part Of: BUPC 2 Campus buildings
Description Level: Sub-series

Series Number: 212

GMD: graphic

Date Range: 1962 - 2010

Physical Description: 30 photographs

History /

Biographical:

Physical Plant provides security, workplace health and safety, building maintenance, utilities,
cleaning, groundskeeping, and key storage services, as well as capital project management
for the Brandon University campus. It includes the new Physical Plant building and new steam
plant on 20th Street and the Site Services building on the corner of 20th Street and Louise
Avenue. Prior to the opening of the new Physical Plant building in 2010, services were
operated out of World War Il era H-Huts in the centre of campus. The original steam plant
(1962-1990s) was sold following the construction of the new steam plant.

Scope and Content:

Sub-series consists of photographs of Physical Plant buildings including: the original Steam
Plant; the (new) Steam Plant; the Site Services Building; the Physical Plant H-Hut; and the new
Physical Plant building.
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